
 

PLEASE NOTE: Not all of the above items may necessarily be acted on and individual items may be acted on out of order.  In accordance with RSMo. Section 610.021, the Board of Aldermen may vote to go into 
Executive Session during this meeting to discuss matters of litigation, legal actions, and communications from the City Attorney, personnel matters, employee information and real estate discussions.  In order to 
accommodate all persons wishing to attend this meeting, the Board of Aldermen may vote to adjourn this meeting and continue it at the St. Ann Community Center, #1 Community Center, Dr. St. Ann, MO 63074.   
 
Posted: 3-3-2017 @ 5:00PM 
 

 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN REGULAR MEETING 
IN BOARD OF ALDERMEN CHAMBERS  

10405 ST. CHARLES ROCK ROAD 
ST. ANN, MISSOURI  63074 

March 6, 2017 @ 7:00PM 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 

1. Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2.  Roll Call  
 
3.  Communications/Public Comment  
       a. Approval of Minutes 

1.  Meeting Minutes – 11-27-2016 and 12-28-2016 Committee 
Meetings 

  b. Community Fire Protection District- Toll Road  
 c.  Public Comment – Agenda Items  
 
4. Introduction of Bills & Resolutions 

a. BILL 3132 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH MTI FOR CERTAIN GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT. 

b. BILL 3133 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH NEW SYSTEM FOR A FLOOR 
SCRUBBING MACHINE. 

c. BILL 3134 – AN ORDIANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE & 
CONSTRUCTION FOR DEBRIS HAULING & DISPOSAL. 

 
5.   Approval of Monthly Reports & Warrant List 
 
6. Public Comment – Non-Agenda Items 
 
7. Adjournment 
 



 

 
 

 

Board of Aldermen Agenda Memorandum No. 3a 
 
 
TO: The Michael Corcoran and Board of Aldermen  
 
DATE: March 6, 2017 
 
RE: Communications/Public Comment 
 
The minutes are attached.  We also have the Community Fire District Toll Road. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
 
Matthew K. Conley 
City Administrator/City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 













































December 27, 2016  1 

 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN COMMITTEE MEETING 
IN BOARD OF ALDERMEN CONFERENCE ROOM 

10405 ST. CHARLES ROCK ROAD 
ST. ANN, MISSOURI 63074 

 
December 27, 2016 

 
Mayor Corcoran called meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Those in attendance were, Aldermen: 
 
Roll Call: 
 Asinger Aye Murphy Aye 
 Poelker Aye Croney Aye 
 Dirck Aye Crabtree Aye 
 Sparks Aye Triplett Aye 
 
Also Present: 
 City Attorney: Steve Garrett 
 City Administrator/City Clerk: Matt Conley 

Chief of Police: Chief Aaron Jimenez/Major Lankford 
Public Services Director: Shawn Seymour 
Director of Parks & Recreation: Tim Younker  
Deputy City Clerk/Deputy Collector: Christina Rogers 

 
 
ITEMS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR/CITY CLERK 
Fair Housing Ordinance Update 
Mr. Conley stated In order to continue to be eligible to participate in the Block Grant Program we 
need to make modification to our Fair Housing Ordinance. 
 

Upon review of Chapter 230 of the City Code of Ordinances, entitled Fair Housing, there 
exists the requirement for the City to have a Human Rights Commission.  The purpose of 
such commission is to hear complaints related to fair housing requirements.  The 
ordinance specifically states, that the commissioners shall be appointed by the Mayor 
for three (3) year terms.  
 
Upon review, there doesn’t appear to have been any appointments made to this 
commission.  Staff proposes amending the ordinance to read, upon receipt of a 
complaint the Mayor shall appoint a commission to review the complaint.  The proposed 
language is provided below.  Language in strikethrough to be removed and language is 
in bold to be added. 
 
Section 230.030Commission Created 
Upon receipt of a complaint regarding alleged discriminatory practices made 

unlawful by Article III of this chapter, There is hereby established a Commission on 
Human Rights. The Commission shall consist of five (5) members, who shall be 
appointed by the Mayor shall appoint a Human Rights Commission with the 

 
 

Approved: ________ 



December 27, 2016  2 

 

approval of the Board of Aldermen. The Commission shall be selected from among 
the residents of the City and who shall serve as such without compensation. 
Appointment shall be for terms of three (3) years. In the event of the death, resignation 
or removal of any member, his/her successor shall be appointed to serve for the 
unexpired period of the term for which such member had been appointed. 

 
2017 Park Planning Grant 
Mr. Conley indicated the playground renovation is part of the Park Bond Issue projects, we 
thought we would submit for a St. Louis County Park Planning Grant for study.  This will provide 
detailed information on what equipment needs to be updated, site update improvements etc.  It 
will also give us points on a grant application to the Parks Commission.   
 
Discussion ensued that included: the same as the Planning Grant for the Pool and Golf Course; 
bond money to replace the playgrounds; safety checks, comprehensive plan; new boarders, pea 
gravel, mulch or new product; St. Louis Composting gives us a break on the price; meets 
criteria; doing projects over a million dollars it is hard to manage them; this year equipment will 
be purchased; consultant not to issue all of the bonds; $400,00 front loaded in next year, with 
another million the following year; state allows pre-pay debt service on bonds to refinance; 
interest rates are still low; by the end of next year, every park will have had something 
completed; Golf Course Task Force final meeting before Spring to conclude meeting and submit 
report to the Board; safety issues; study will tell us if ADA compliant; apply for grant every year. 
 
P & Z Report 
The Planning & Zoning Commission did not meet in December. 
 
Northwest Plaza Condominium Plat 4 (Buescher Ditch & Associates, Inc.):  
A request for approval of a condominium plat in the “C-3” Regional Commercial District.  Staff has 
reviewed the submitted condo plat.  The plat proposes identifying units 551G and 601B. Staff 
recommends approval of the submitted condominium plat. 
 
Law Enforcement Surplus Vehicles 
Chief Jimenez stated with the budget crunch we have cleaned some things up and found 
cheaper phones with the employees paying a portion on their bill; we have three vehicles that 
are a mess with over 100,000 miles on them we have scraped them, taking good tires off them, 
every piece of equipment has been removed; the engines are knocking; vehicles are no good. 
 
Mr. Conley commented this is the same way we have disposed of vehicles the last few years. 
 
Chief Jimenez indicated he went to several vendors who only wanted to give us $750.  Plaza 
Motors will purchase one for $1,500 and the others $1,000. 
 
Mr. Conley stated an ordinance will be heard at the next regular meeting. 
 
Law Enforcement Funding Options 
Mr. Conley communicated as we have discussed, we must make a decision on allowing Chief 
Jimenez to seek a referendum on funding the law enforcement programs and services that can 
no longer be sustained by the General Fund due to court fine revenue reduction.  Most of these 
programs were added back into the budget with the increase in court fine revenue that came 
with the I-70 enforcement program.  These include the 5 school resource officers, DARE 



December 27, 2016  3 

 

Officer/Program, K-9 Program, and Neighborhood Watch Program, increase detective positions, 
etc. 
 
To cover the $975,000 decline in court fine revenue over the last two years, would require voter 
approval of a $.80/100 operating tax levy on all real and personal property.  For a property with 
a market value of $120,000 this equates to a cost of $13.92/month or $167 a year.  This rate will 
be sufficient IF court fine revenue meets the estimate in the 2017 Budget of $800,000.  If court 
fine revenue drops significantly below this amount, budget reductions will still need to be made. 
 
Mr. Conley reported he was originally going to recommend a $.95/100 rate to provide some 
cushion, but this would put us above the state mandated limit of $1/100 for 4th Class Cities so 
this is not an option. 
 
Mayor Corcoran stated an ordinance will be heard at the January Regular meeting. 
 
Financial Report  
Mr. Conley reported expenses are closing out the year on budget.  Mr. Conley indicated the 
gasoline costs have gone down.  This year our gasoline and diesel accounts are down.  Mr. 
Conley believes we will end the year well.  The only difference will be the budget shows the park 
fund shows a beginning of the year with money, however this will be transferred at the end of 
the year.  We need to keep as much money in the general fund which will help with our bond 
rating on the Park Bond issue. 
 
 
ITEMS FROM MAYOR & BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
Mayor Corcoran announced the TDD meeting for December 28th at 1:00 p.m. if anyone is 
interested in attending. 
 
Mr. Conley communicated the way the TDD is set up, we partner with Bi-State/Metro.  They will 
replace or move some of the bus stops on the Rock Road, this has been delayed since MODOT 
is going to re-do St. Charles Rock Road in 2019, replacing sidewalks to ADA requirements.  The 
bus stops are on hold until the work is completed.  Mr. Conley mentioned we purchased some 
banners this year and next year, the operating TDD we will have money for the landscaping and 
street scape as part of the original project. 
 
Alderman Murphy questioned if we could apply for grants for the lighting?  Mr. Conley 
responded that in the City of St. John a lot of work was paid out of their TIF, with lightening and 
sidewalks. 
 
Discussion ensued that included: similar to Park Grant from the State through the Economic 
Development called “Main Street USA” program and apply grant with matching to do the 
lightening; landscaping looks nice; signals have rust hanging off them and MODOT will not 
replace; we could find out if we can sand blast and paint; if the citywide TDD passes to replace 
the streets, we will budget money to replace street signs and apply for a grant through MODOT 
to inventory all of our signs; New City Administrator for Bridgeton is receptive on working with us 
on the Lindbergh corridor. 
 
Letter to Residents (Yard Waste Truck) 
Alderman Murphy stated he was made aware that the motor for the yard waste truck has been 
ordered.  Alderman Murphy asked if there was a way to communicate this information to the 
residents. 



December 27, 2016  4 

 

 
Discussion ensued that included: looking into robo-call costs; driver placing a sticker on the 
cans; residents are upset that a solution has not been agreed upon and no communication; a 
yard waste truck being down does not justify the cost for a $4,000; not an automatic thing, a 
human behind it; we ask the residents for so much; if we get another DAG form this will be 
purchased through the police department, top of the line cost is $6,500, it can be programmed 
to call all senior citizens, if they don’t answer they send someone to check on them; Social 
Media Coordinator to help out; schools use it for snow days or items parents need to be aware 
of; federal drug money could purchase; stickers for the yard waste cans, explain why the can is 
still there, more work; they will still call; hoping to get truck back by middle of January; no cost 
for stickers; phone calls have slowed down; requested residents to check the website and the 
sign out front or they are welcome to call City Hall. 
 
ADJOURNMENT/EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Motion made by Alderman Crabtree to move into Executive Session, seconded by Alderman 
Asinger. 
 
Roll Call: 
 Asinger Aye Murphy Aye 
 Poelker Aye Croney Aye 
 Dirck Aye Crabtree Aye 
 Sparks Aye Triplett Aye 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. when the Board went into Executive Session.  As authorized by 
the Sunshine Law, subsection of Section 610.021.  (1) Legal actions, causes of action or 
litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged 
communications between a public governmental body or its representatives and its attorneys.  
(2) Leasing, purchase or sale of real estate by a public governmental body where public 
knowledge of the transaction might adversely affect the legal consideration therefor.   
No votes taken. 
 
No votes taken. 
 
Hearing a motion and second, meeting adjourned from Executive Session at 7:50 p.m.  All in 
favor. 
 
 
ATTEST:      /S/  MICHAEL G. CORCORAN 

Mayor 

 

/S/ MATT CONLEY 

City Clerk 

 
APPROVED this 6th day of March, 2017. 



 

 
 

 

 

Board of Aldermen Agenda Memorandum No. 4a, b, & c 
 
TO: The Honorable Michael Corcoran and Board of Aldermen 
 
DATE: March 6, 2017 
 
RE: Introduction of Bills & Resolutions 
 
They are attached.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
 
Matthew K. Conley 
City Administrator/City Clerk



 

 
 

 

 
 
First reading:  ________ 
 
Second reading:  ________ 
 
Introduced by __________________ 
 
BILL NO. 3132      ORDINANCE NO. _______  

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH MTI FOR CERTAIN GROUNDS MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Administrator is authorized to accept the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
Passed by the Board of Aldermen for the City of St. Ann, Missouri, this _____ day of _____________, 2017. 
 

     ____________________________ 
      Presiding Officer 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Signed this _____ day of _______________, 2017. 
 
       
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Michael G. Corcoran 
      Mayor, City of St. Ann 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

First reading:  ________ 
 
Second reading:  ________ 
 
Introduced by __________________ 
 
BILL NO. 3133      ORDINANCE NO. _______  

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH NEW SYSTEM FOR A FLOOR SCRUBBING MACHINE. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Administrator is authorized to accept the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
Passed by the Board of Aldermen for the City of St. Ann, Missouri, this _____ day of _____________, 2017. 
 

     ____________________________ 
      Presiding Officer 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Signed this _____ day of _______________, 2017. 
 
       
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Michael G. Corcoran 
      Mayor, City of St. Ann 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

First reading:  ________ 
 
Second reading:  ________ 
 
Introduced by __________________ 
 
BILL NO. 3134      ORDINANCE NO. _______  

 
AN ORDIANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE & CONSTRUCTION FOR DEBRIS HAULING & DISPOSA. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Administrator is authorized to accept the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
Passed by the Board of Aldermen for the City of St. Ann, Missouri, this _____ day of _____________, 2017. 
 

     ____________________________ 
      Presiding Officer 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Signed this _____ day of _______________, 2017. 
 
       
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Michael G. Corcoran 
      Mayor, City of St. Ann 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 

Board of Aldermen Agenda Memorandum No. 5 
 
TO: The Honorable Michael Corcoran and Board of Aldermen 
 
DATE:  March 6, 2017 
 
RE: Approval of Monthly Reports & Warrant List 
 
 
They are attached. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
Matthew K. Conley 
City Administrator\Clerk 
 
















